N COUNCIL

INE 8, 2020

CITY OF HARTFORD
550 MAIN STREET
HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06103




AGENDA

MEETING OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
JUNE 8§, 2020
APPROVE MINUTES OF COUNCIL MEETINGS APRIL 13 & 27, 2020

ACTION

COMMUNICATIONS

I.

MAYOR BRONIN, with accompanying resolution confirming my nomination of Michael T.
Looney as Director of the Department of Public Works for the City of Hartford, effective upon
Council vote,

MAYOR BRONIN, with accompanying resolution authorizing the City to acoept a grant in the
amount of $75,000 from CTNext LLC for use as a retail business activation grant along the
Trinity College - Hartford Hospital corridor.

MAYOR BRONIN, with accompanying resolution that would allow City to enter info an
agreement to replace the old fleet of golf cars and service vehicles with new units. Under the
agreement the vendor, E-Z-GO, will provide service and maintenance for the new golf cars and
setvice vehicles at no additional cost to the City.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, Communication concerning various updates regarding the
Hartford Police Department.

FOR ACTION

3.

Ordinance amending Chapter 2, Appointments of Departments Heads Requirements, Section
850 Residency requirements of the Municipal Code.

Ordinance Revision Updating Planning and Zoning Codes for Clarification Purposes.

Ordinance amending Chapter 2, Section 102, regarding Office of Human Relations of the
Municipal Code of the City of Hartford,

RESOLUTIONS

8.

10,

(COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROSADO)} (MAJORITY LEADER CLARKE II) (COUNCILMAN

SANCHEZ) (COUNCILWOMAN ROSSETTT) (COUNCILMAN LEBRON)

(COUNCILWOMAN SURGEON) (COUNCILMAN GALE) (COUNCILWOMAN BERMUDEZ)
(COUNCILMAN MICHTOM) Resolution by the Court of Common Council ratifying Policy

006 on Sexual Harassment, promulgated and signed by Mayor Luke Bronin on October 1,

2019, as the Policy of the City of Hartford and specificalty the Court of Common Council.

(COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROSADO) (MAJORITY LEADER CLARKE IT) (COUNCILMAN
LEBRON) (COUNCILWOMAN ROSSETTI) (COUNCILMAN SANCHEZ)
(COUNCILWOMAN SURGEON) (COUNCILMAN GALE) Resolution that empowers the
Council President to select a Legislative and Legal Advisor to serve the Court of Common
Council, who is a Hartford resident, and at an hourly rate of pay not to exceed $250.00 and
provided further that the Council President shall not engage such counsel until the Council has,
by resolution, indicated specifically the scope of the services to be provided and the particular
counsel to provide said services.

(MAJORITY LEADER CLARKE T1) (COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROSADO) (COUNCILMAN
SANCHEZ) (COUNCILMAN GALE) (COUNCILWOMAN SURGEON) Resolution requesting
that The Hartford Police Accountability Review Board (PARB) be created as an independent
body not tied to the Hartford Police Department, and shall consider reforms regarding policing
practices and will also engage directly with the Hartford community and submit formal
recommendations on a number of policies and issues also will meet at least once each month at
City Hall. Upon all approvals and authorizations provided this action will be sent to the
Connecticut General Assembly's Black & Puerto Rican Legislative Caucus wrging them to

adopt this action statewide.

TAKEN




11, (MAJORITY LEADER CLARKE II) (COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROSADO)

2.

(COUNCILWOMAN SURGEON) (COUNCILMAN SANCHEZ) (COUNCILWOMAN
ROSSETTI) (COUNCILMAN LEBRON) Resolution requesting that pursuant to the provisions

of C.G.S. §7-186 through 7-194, specifically §7-188(b) and Section 5 of Chapter XIII of the

Charter, the Court of Common of the City of Hartford hereby initiates an action to amend the

current charter by authorizing the creation of a Charter Revision Comimission, acting by a two-

thirds vote of its entire membership.

(COUNCILMAN SANCHEZ) (COUNCILMAN GALE) Resolution urging the Department of
Health and Human Services, the Departiment of Public Works and other departments, to participate in
using “existing completed research” of FAR UVC Lighting for an “added extra level” of disinfecting.

Noel F. McGregor, Jr.
City Clerk

Aftest:




mem#___ [ ONAGENDA

Luke A. Bronin
Mayor

June 8, 2020

Honorable Maly D. Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Council

City of Hartford '

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

RE: Department of Public Works Director Nomination

Dear Council President Rosado,

Attached for your consideration is a resolution confirming my nomination of Michael T. Looney
as Director of the Department of Public Works for the City of Hartford, effective upon Council

vote.

Mr. Looney has worked for the City of Hartford since 2014, first in the Department of
Development Services as Director of Projects, and then in the Department of Public Works where
he served as Deputy Director before assuming his current position as Acting Director.

As a member of the Development Services team, Mr. Looney helped lead our efforts to get the
construction of Dunkin® Donuts Park on track, among many other responsibilities within the
department. Upon joining the Department of Public Works as Deputy Director, he has had day to
day managerial responsibility over the entire team and he has played a key role in a number of

cross-departmental initiatives, :

Prior to joining the City, Mr, Looney spent more than a decade at an engineering, planning, and
landscape architecture firm in Connecticut. Tknow him to be an extremely commiited and capable
public servant, and T am proud to nominate him for this important position.

Mr. Looney earned a bachelor’s degree from Yale University, and a master’s degree in city
planning from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Respectfully submitted,

Luke A. Bronin
Mayor




INTRODUCED BY COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Luke A. Bronin, Mayor City of Hartford, June 8, 2020

WHERFEAS, The Mayor has nominated Michael T. Looney as Director of the Department
of Public Works for the City of Hartford, and

WHEREAS, Mr. Looney serves as Acting Director of the Department of Public Works
and has worked for the City of Hartford since 2014 in senior roles at the Department of
Development Services and the Department of Public Works, now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Court of Common Council hereby confirms the Mayor’s
nomination of Michael T. Looney as Director of the Department of Public Works for the City of
Hartford, effective upon Council vote,




meme A ON AGENDA

Tuke A, Bronin
Mayor

June 8, 2020

Honorable Maly D. Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Council

City of Hartford

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

RE: C(TNext LLC - Business Activation Grant

Dear Council President Rosado,

Attached for your consideration is a resolution authorizing the City to accept a grant in the amount
of $75,000 from CTNext LLC for use as a retail business activation grant along the Trinity College

- Hartford Hospital corridor.

As you may know, CTNext is a quasi-public subsidiary of Connecticut Innovations (CI), that aims
to build a stronger entrepreneurial environment within Connecticut. CTNext has a wide range of
economic development programs to help Connecticut’s entrepreneurs grow their businesses.

CTNext designated this corridor for retail business activation, and the funding can be used for
facade improvements, marketing, and other business activities aimed at creating an attractive

commercial area.

The Department of Development Services is happy to answer any questions that you may have,
Thank you for your consideration. '

Respectfully submitted,

Luke A, Bronin
Mayor




INTRODUCED BY COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Luke A. Bronin, Mayor City of Hartford, June 8, 2020
WHEREAS, CTNext LLC has awarded the City of Hartford an Innovation District

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

Activation Grant of $75,000 to be used for retail business activation along
the Trinity College — Hartford Hospital Corridor; and

The Activation Places Grant will offer funding to support and grow retail
establishments and capital improvements such as fagade enhancements; and

Grant funding may also support marketing, events and other business
activities with the objective of creating vibrant employment and
commercial hubs; and now therefore be it

That the Court of Common Council authorizes the Mayor to accept grant
funding in the amount of $75,000 from CTNext LLC, The Innovation
Activation Grant program to stimulate business activity along the Trinity-
Hartford Hospital corridor; and be it further

That the Mayor is authorized to accept such further sums as may be
additionally awarded by the grantor under the same program, for the same
authorized contract period or any immediate extension thereof, and for the
same purposes; and be if further

That the Mayor is authorized to execute any and all manner of other
documents and to take such other actions as he and the Corporation Counsel
may deem appropriate and in the best interests of the City in order to
receive, contract and expend the above referenced grant funds; and be it

further

That no person or entity shall be entitled to rely on, or otherwise claim any
benefit by reason of this resolution should the Mayor fail to execute the
aforementioned agreement or other documents, or to take any of the other
aforesaid actions; and be it finther

That all approvals and authorizations provided hereby are contingent upon,
and only shall be effective on and by means of, the parties executing such
documents, and taking such actions, all of which shall be, in form and
substance, acceptable to the Mayor and the Corporation Counsel.




ITEM# \3 ON AGENDA,

Luke A. Bronin
Mayor

June 8, 2020

Honorable Maly D. Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Council

City of Hartford

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

RE: Golf Cars and Service Vehicles for Goodwin Park Golf Course

Dear Council President Rosado,

Attached for your consideration is a resolution that would allow City to enter into an agreement
to replace the old fleet of golf cars and service vehicles with new units. Under the agreement the
vendor, B-Z-GO, will provide service and maintenance for the new golf cars and service vehicles
at no additional cost to the City. This would be a five-year agreement for a total of
approximately $292,000, and after accounting for the fees that users pay for golf cars at the golf
course, the Department of Public Works anticipates that this will be revenue-positive for the

City.

F-7-GO has been the City’s golf car vendor since 2015, and the City has been satisfied with E-Z-
GO’s provision of the golf cars and service vehicles.

The Department of Public Works is happy to answer any questions that you may have. Thank
you for your consideration.

Respectfully submitted,
g . _

T

Luke A. Bronin
Mayor

550 Main Street
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
Telephone (860) 757-9500
Facsimile (860) 722-6606




INTRODUCED BY : COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Luke A. Bronin, Mayor City of Hartford, June 8, 2020

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

E-Z-GO, a Division of Textron, Inc,, with a trade name of E-Z-GO/Cushman,
(the “Vendor™) is the vendor that has been providing the Golf Cars under a
Municipal Lease, consisting of a Lease-Purchase Agreement and a Service
Agreement (collectively the “Agreement”), which Agreement is reaching its end
in 2020; and

the City now wishes to enter into a new five-year, approximately $292,000 Golf
Car arrangement with the Vendor for the Golf Course (the “New Agreement”),
which New Agreement includes a Master Lease Agreement(s) with the
Vendor’s financial institution, the provision of certain service vehicles, allows
the City to replace its old fleet of Golf Cars and service vehicles with new units,
and requires the Vendor to provide service and maintenance of the Golf Cars
and service vehicles at no additional cost to the City; and

entering into the New Agreement with the Vendor has been deemed by both the
City’s Procurement Unit and the City’s Office of the Corporation Counsel to be
acceptable and appropriate under any and all applicable City laws, now,
therefore, be it

that the City of Hartford’s Court of Common Council hereby empowers and
authorizes the Mayor to execule and deliver the New Agreement, and any
extensions thereof and/or amendments thereto, upon and subject to such terms
and conditions as may be negotiated by the City’s Department of Public Works
and the City’s Office of the Corporation Counsel, both acting in the best
interests of the City; and be it further

that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to execute and deliver any
other documents and to take such other actions, upon and subject to such terms
and conditions that the Mayor or his designee and the Office of the Corporation
Counsel may deem appropriate and in the best interests of the City, in order to
effectuate and/or further the above transaction(s); and be it further

that o person or entity shall be entitled to rely on, or otherwise claim any benefit
by reason of this resolution, should the Mayor or his designee fail to execute and
deliver the aforementioned agreements or other documents, or to take any of the
other aforesaid actions; and be it further

that all approvals and authorizations provided hereby are contingent upon, and
only shall be effective on and by means of, the Mayor or his designee executing
and delivering such agreements and documents, and taking such actions, all of
which shall be, in form and substance, acceptable to the Mayor or his designee
and the Office of the Corporation Counsel.




ITEM# </ ON AGENDA,

@gnﬁ of @ﬂmmﬂn @01111”‘1

CITY OF HARTFORD
550 MAIN STREET
HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT 06103

Maly D. Rosado, Council President Nick Lebron, Councilman
Thomas J. Clarke II, Majority Leader Joshua Michtom, Councilman
Wildaliz Bermudez, Councilwoman Marilyn E. Rossetti, Councilwoman
John Q. Gale, Councilman James Sénchez, Councilman

Shirley Surgeon, Councilwoman

Noel F. MeGregor, Jr, Town and City Clerk

COMMUNICATION

Honorable Maly D. Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Council

City of Hartford

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

Dear Council President Rosado:

On Thursday, May 28", at 6:00pm the Committee of the Whole met to discuss various updates
regarding the Hartford Police Department.

Council Attendance: Council President Maly D. Rosado, Majority Leader Thomas J. Clarke II,
Councilman James Sanchez, Councilwoman Marilyn Rossetti, Councilman Nick Lebron,
Councilwoman Shitley Surgeon, Councilman John Gale, Councilwoman Wildaliz Bermudez,

and Counqihnan Josh Michtom.

Hartford Police Department Attendance: Chief Jason Thody, Assistant Chief Rafael Medina,
Captain Gabriel Laureano, and Lieutenant Paul Cicero

This meeting was held virtually using the webex platform and streamed on www.hpatv.org.

A patrol division update, CSO update was given along with recommendations from Governor
Ned Lamont. Questions from the public were also asked. The meeting ended at 8:05pm.

Respectfully submitted, Maly D. Rosado, Council President




Luke A. Bronin
Mayor

March 9, 2020

Honorable Maly D, Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Couneil

City of Havtford .

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

RE: Revision to Residency Requirement

Dear Council President Rosado,

Attached for your consideration is an ordinance that would revise Chapter 2, Section 850 of the Mumicipal Code of the City of
Hartford, commonly known as the residency requirement. As you kmow, while state law bars a residency requirement for union
employees, our current residency requirement applies to all Council and Mayoral appointees and uneclassified employees of the City,

The ordinance change before von would create a mechanism by which that requirement can be waived for certain employees, with a
10% decrease in maximn salary for any employee for whom the requirement is waived. Please note that the ordinance before you
does not allow the residency requirentent to be waived for the Chief Operating Officer, the Fire Chief, the Chief of Police, or the

Corporation Counsel.

The purpose of the residency requirement is to help ensure City leaders are connected to and invested in the community. We all share
that desire and that goal. However, as an administration, we have seen that there can be an unintended consequence to the residency
requirement as currently constitnted: some candidates who have deep ties to Hartford, but whose families have moved to surrounding
communities, are effectively dismissed from contention for leadership roles because it is not practical for them to sell their homes and
miove their families jusi a few miles. In some cases, the residency requirement as currently constituted actnally makes it easier-fo
vecruit someone from out of state, with no ties to Hartford, than it does to recruit someone who lives, for example, in Bloomfield or

Windsor, and has strong conuections to Hartford,

In addition, almost all employees subject to the residency requirement are appointees, and therefore have much less job security than
our other employees. Finally, for department heads in particular, we recruit individuals with very specific expertise, who are highly
qualified in particular areas of municipal government, That limits the candidate pool to begin with, and the residency requirement as
currently constituted puts us at a competitive disadvantage. While some of our peer cities also have residency requirements, few, if

any, apply to such a wide range of employees as Hartford’s.

1 strongly believe that we should encourage and incentivize residency, as this change seeks to do. I do not believe that the current
inflexible requirement benefits our city or our community in the way in which it was originally intended.

T look forward to discussing this proposal with you and working together to ensure that we are delivering the best possible service to
our residents. Thank you for your consideration.

Thank you for yowr consideration.

Respectiully submitted,
Luke A. Bronin
Mayor

550 Main Street
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
‘Telephone (860} 757-9500
Faesimile (860) 722-6606




Introduced by:

HEADING
AND
PURPOSE

Mayor Luke A. Bronin

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, SECTION 850 OF THE HARTFORD MUNICIPAL
CODE

COURT OF COMMON

COUNCIL,
CITY OF HARTFORD

March 9, 2020

Be It Ordained by the Court of Common Council of the City of Hartford:
That Chapter 2, Section 850, of the Municipal Code of the City of Hartford be amended as follows:

(A) All council and Mayor appointees and Unclassified Employees employed by the City, shall
maintain a continuous residence in the City during the period of such appoiniment or
employment. This section shall not apply to new employees or appointees during the first six
(6) months of such employment or appointment. If such individual ceases to be a bona fide
resident of the City once the residency has been established or fails to become a bona fide
resident within six {6) months of the appointment or employment, the Council shall, by a vote
of seven (7) members, send notice to the mayor that pursuant to the provisions of Chapter V,
section 3(c) of the Hartford Charter, the office or position of the individual who has failed to
remain a bona fide resident of Hartford shall thereupon become vacant, and such appointment
or employment shall terminate.

Bona fide resident is defined as:

(1)  An employee who has a Hartford mailing address. A post office address does not qualify
as a bona fide Hartford address;

(2) Be aregistered Hartford voter; and

(3) Ifthe employee owns a motor vehicle, said motor vehicle must be registered in the City of
Hartford

(B) The provisions of subsection (A) above shall not apply to individuals who were employees and
/ appointees at the time of the effective date of this section.

(C) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection {A) above, the Mayor, after providing a written
justification to the Council, may waive the requirement for bona fide residence in the City of
Hartford, provided that (1) such requirement shall never be waived for the positions of Chief
Operating Officer, Fire Chief, Chief of Police and Corporation Counsel, and (2) the maximum
galary for any emplovee for whom the resideney requirement is waived shall be reduced by ten
percent {10%) from that set forth in the applicable pay scale.

This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.




ITEM# 49 ON AGENDA,

Luke A, Bronin .
Mayor

May 11, 2020

Honorable Maly D. Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Council

City of Hartford

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

RYX: Ordinance Revision Updatihg Planning and Zoning Codes for Clarification Parposes

Dear Council President Rosado,

Attached for your consideration is an ordinance that would update parts of the City’s Municipal Code
related to the Planning and Zoning Commission to remove antiquated references, remove references to
State statues that are outdated or no longer applicable to municipal planning and zoning, and to make other
changes that will clean up our code to make it clearer and easier {o use.

There are no changes to City processes included in these changes. The most substantive change is repealing
the section of the code related to the display of flags, which is now dealt with through the zoning regulations
updated by the Planning and Zoning Commission in 2016.

Corporation Counsel’s office and the Planning and Zoning Commission are happy to answer any
gquestions you may have. Thank you for your consideration.

Respectfully submitted,

P

Luke A. Bronin
Mayor

550 Main Street
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
Telephone (860) 757-9500
Facsimile (860) 722-6606




Introduced
by:

HEADING
AND
PURPOSE

Luke A. Bronin, Mayor

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 1, 2, 9, 13, 22, 23, 26, 28, 31,
32, AND 36 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF HARTFORD TO CLARIFY
CERTAIN LAND USE REGULATORY PROCESSES

COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL,
CITY OF HARTFORD

May 11, 2020

Be It Ordained by the Court of Common Council of the City of Hartford:

That Section 1-5 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows: '

i| Sec. 1-5. - Hearing procedure for citations.

(a)

Appointment of citalion hearing officers. There shall be a hearing procedure for
citations established in accordance with G.S. § 7-152¢. The Corporation Counsel
shall appoint one (1) or more persons to act as citation hearing officers to conduct
hearings authorized by this section, except that no police officer, member of the

i corporation counsel's office, employee or other person who issues citations shall be
authorized to conduct hearings.

(b)

Notice of violation, fines, rights. Within twelve (12) months from the expiration of
the final period for the uncontested payment of fines, penalties, costs or fees for any
citation issued under any ordinance adopted pursuant to G.S. § 7-148 or Chapter
97a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and for the violation of [any zoning
ordinance in Chapter 35 of this Municipal Code] the zoning regulations of the
planning and zoning commission, notice shall be sent to the property owner of the
alleged violation. Such notice shall inform the owner and other person cited: (1) Of
the allegations against him and the amount of the fines, penalties, costs or fees due;
(2) That he may contest his liability before a citation hearing officer by delivering in
person or by mail written notice within ten (10) days of the date thereof; (3) That if
he does not demand such a hearing, an assessment and judgment shall be entered
against him; and (4) That such judgment may issue without further notice.

©




Admission of liability. If the person who is sent notice pursuant to subsection (b) of
this section wishes to admit liability for any alleged violation, he may, without
requesting a hearing, pay the full amount of the fines, penalties, costs, or fees
admitted to in person or by mail to the City department that issued the citation.
Such payment shall be inadmissible in any proceeding, civil or criminal, to establish
the conduct of such person or other person making the payment. Any person who
does not deliver or mail written demand for a hearing within ten (10) days of the
date of the first notice provided for in subsection (a) of this section shall be deemed
to have admitted liability, and the Corporation Counsel shall certify such person's
failure to respond to the hearing officer. The hearing officer shall thereupon enter
and assess the fines, penalties, costs, or fees provided for by the applicable
ordinances and shall follow the procedures set forth in this section.

(d)

Conduct of hearing. Any person who requests a hearing pursuant to subsection (c) of
this section shall be given written notice of the date, time and place for the hearing.
Such hearing shall be held not less than fifteen (15) days nor more than thirty (30)
days from the date of the mailing of notice, provided the hearing officer shall grant
upon good cause shown any reasonable request by an interested party for
postponement or continuance. An original or certified copy of the initial notice of
violation issued by the issuing official or police officer shall be filed and retained by
the municipality, and shall be deemed to be a business record and evidence of the
facts contained therein. The presence of the issuing official or police officer shall be
required at the hearing if such person so requests. A person wishing to contest his
liability shall appear at the hearing and may present evidence in his behalf. The
corporation counsel or his designee shall present evidence on behalf of the city. If
the owner or person cited fails to appear, the hearing officer may enter an
assessment by default against him upon a finding of proper notice and liability
under the applicable statutes or ordinances. The hearing officer may aceept from
such person copies of police reports, investigatory and citation reports, and other
official documents by mail and may determine thereby that the appearance of such
person is unnecessary. The hearing officer shall conduct the hearing in the order
and form and with such methods of proof as he deems fair and appropriate. The
rules regarding the admissibility of evidence shall not be strictly applied, but all
testimony shall be given under cath or affirmation. The hearing officer shall
announce his decision at the end of the hearing. If the hearing officer determines
that the person is not liable, the matter shall be dismissed and the determination
entered in writing accordingly. If the hearing officer determines that the person is
liable for the violation, he shall forthwith enter and assess the fines, penalties, costs
or fees against such person as provided by the applicable ordinances.

()

Notice of assessmendt. If such assessment i8 not paid on the date of its entry, the
hearing officer shall send by first class mail a notice of the assessment to the person
found liable and shall file, not less than thirty (30) days nor more than twelve (12)

-2

fi




months after such mailing, a certified copy of the notice of assessment with the
clerk of the superior court for the Judicial District of Hartford together with an
entry fee of eight dollars ($8.00), against such person in favor of the municipality.
Notwithstanding any other provisions, the hearing officer's assessment, when so
entered as a judgment, shall have the effect of a civil money judgment and a levy of
execution on such judgment may issue without further notice to such person. Fines
stemming from the Anti-Blight and Property-Maintenance Program in Chapter 9,
Article V, herein, may be continued as antl blight liens pursuant to G.S. § 7-148aa.
)

Appeal. A person against whom an assessment has been entered pursuant to this
section is entitled to judicial review by way of appeal. An appeal shall be instituted
within thirty (30) days of the mailing of notice of such assessment by filing a
petition to reopen assessment, together with an entry fee in an amount equal the
entry fee for a small claims case in the superior court for the Judicial District of
Hartford, which shall entitle such person to a hearing in accordance with the rules
of the judges of the superior court.

That Section 2-11 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 2-11. - Participation in regional council of governments.

(&)
The city does hereby adopt G.S. §§ 4-1241 through 4-124p providing for the
formation of a regional council of governments within a planning region, as defined
Il or redefined by the director of the office of state planning. The city hereby joins the
regional council of governments within its planning region when and as such council
is duly established in accordance with G.S. 4-124i through 4-124p upon the adoption
of such statute by not less than sixty (60) percent of all municipalities within such

planning region.

(b)

The representative of this city on the regional council shall be the mayor of this city.
An alternate representative, when authorized, shall be a member of the court of
common council, who shall be chosen by the court of common council. The
representative of this city on the regional planning commission, as provided for in
(3.S. § 4-1240, shall be an elector of the city, who shall be a member of the planning
and zoning commission [on the city plan]. Such representative shall be appointed by
the planning and zoning commission [on the (:1ty plan] with the concurrence of the
court of common council.

(c)

The regional council of governments shall have such powers, purposes, duties and
responsibilities as provided in G.S. § 4-1241 through 4-124p.




That Section 2-108.4 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows: : \ : ;

Sec. 2-108.4. - Department of development services—Planning.

(a)
The head of planning shall sexve as the secretary to the planning and zoning
commission and assign other employees of the division to assist the planning and

zZoning commission as may be necessary.

(b)

The department of development services shall have a planning function, that may
take the form of a division, office or work unit to carry out its duties and
responsibilities, which may include but are not limited to:

(1)

Providing design services and staff and technical assistance to the [land use board
and commission, design review board, design review team] zoning board of appeals,
planning and zoning commission, and the city's historic properties commission;
develop design guidelines; provide architectural and graphic data and mapping
assistance to other city departments; and evaluate and make recommendations on
proposals from various neighborhood organizations.

(2)

Preparing the ten-year plan of conservation and development and developing
strategic plans for implementing the ten-year plan of conservation and
development, preparing project and feasibility studies, serving as a liaison between
planning and implementing agencies, and providing zoning staff assistance.

(3)

Coordinating the preparation of the city capital improvement plan.

4

Performing such other dutles as may be as&gned by the director of the department
of development services.

I

o

That Divisioﬁ 10 of Chapter 2, Article V of the Municipal Code of Hartford
shall be repealed in its entirety.

[DIVISION 10. - DESIGN REVIEW BOARD

Sec. 2-296. - Kstablished; composition; membelshlp, officers; terms.

(a)

There shall be a design review board for the purposes set forth in sections 35-292,
35-322, 35-371, 35-406 and 35-442. The council shall appoint the members of the
board, which shall consist of five (5) regular members and two (2) alternate
members. At least one (1) regular member shall have a college degree and
experience in architecture; at least one (1) regular member shall have a graduate
degree and experience in landscape architecture, city planning, urban design,

4.




—

historic preservation orarchitectural history; and at least one (1) regular member
shall be a practicing realestate, development or construction professional with
knowledge of urban design. The fourth and fifth regular members shall be residents
of the city. Alfernate members shall have special training or experience in
architecture, urban design or other relevant businesses or professions. Members are
required to be residents of the city or a member of a firm based in the city and shall
receive no compensation for their services on the board.

(b :

The chairperson and vice-chairperson of the board shall be elected by a majority of
the members of the board for a term of three (3) years. Board members shall not
serve as chairperson or vice-chairperson for more than one (1) term. Members shall
be appointed for terms of three (3) years. Persons shall not serve on the board for
more than two (2) consecutive terms. The council shall have the authority to remove
a member for good cause, which shall include the failure to regularly attend board

meetings.

Sec. 2-297. - Meetings; rules; records; reports.

The design review board shall meet at such times as the board may determine. A
quorum shall consist of three (3) members. The board shall adopt rules and
procedures, which shall include criteria for reviewing projects. The board shall keep
records of its meetings and activities and shall report no less than annually to the
council and the commission on the city plan on its activities.

Sec. 2-298. - Conflicts of interest.

No design review board member shall appear for or represent any person or other
entity in any matter pending before the council, commission or zoning board of
appeals. No member shall participate in the meeting or decision of the board upon
any matter in which he is directly or indirvectly interested in a personal or financial
sense. In the event of such disqualification, such fact shall be entered on the records
of the board and the chairperson shall appoint an alternate member to participate

in the meeting.

Sec. 2-299. - Project review.

(a)

When reviewing a project in accordance with section 35-297, 35-299, 35-333, 35-371,
35-406, or 35-442, the design review board will determine whether the applicant has

demonstrated that the project:

oy

Creates an attractive environment that is in harmony with the B-1 downtown
development district, B-2 downtown development perimeter district, B-3 linear
business district, B-4 neighborhood shopping district or RO-1 residential-office
district;

@)




Is compatible with and enhances the design concept of adjacent bulldlngs, and

(3)

Encourages an active and v1tal pedestrian environment.

(b) ’

In making its determination, the board will consider criteria such as massing,
height, materials, color, harmony and proportion of overall design, architectural

style, siting, scale and fenestration.|

That Section 2-486 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 2-486. - Report, approval of sale of city property.

(a)

The city manager shall refer any pending sale of city-owned land and buildings to
the planning and zoning commission [on the city plan] for any recommendation
thereon. Any such recommendation shall be forwarded within thirty (30) days to the
city manager. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the city
manager from reporting any pending sale of city-owned land and buildings to the
council in the event said commission makes no recommendation within such period.
(b)

The city manager, after such period referred to in subsection (a), shall report to the
council any pending sale of city-owned land and buildings, accompanied by any
recommendation pertaining thereto from the commission on the city plan, and the
council shall approve or disapprove such sales.

(c)

The city manager shall establish and amend from time to time all rules and
regulations concerning the sale of city-owned land and buildings. Such rules and
regulations and amendments thereto shall be subject to the review of the council.

That Section 9-72 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 9-72. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly
indicates a different meaning: i

Affordable housing means a rental housing umt for which the monthly contract rent
does not exceed thirty (30) percent of sixty (60) percent of family income inclusive of
all utilities as defined by HUD HOME program income limits.

.




Converted use means the conversion of any housing unit, whether occupied or
vacant, from a residential to a nonresidential use.

Demolition means the destruction of any housing unit.

[Housing unit means any dwelling unit or rooming unit, as defined in chapter 18 of
this Code, or unit within a hotel, residential or apartment as defined in chapter 35
of this Code.] Housing unit has the meaning ascribed in section 18-3 of this Code.

f Notice means a written notice unless otherwise specified.

Owner means any person, firm, partnership, association, joint venture, corporation
or other entity who undertakes the demolition or change of use of any housing unit,
The word "owner" also includes agent and any other person acting on the owner's
behalf.

Rental unit means any housing unit that is occupied pursuant to a lawful rental
agreement, oral or written.
Residential uses means the use of any housing unit designed, arranged, intended,
occupied, maintained, leased or rented as the primary residence of any person.
Standard unit means any housing unit that meets the minimum standards of the
I City of Hartford's Housing, Building, Zoning, and Fire codes.

Tenant means any person who occupied a unit pursuant to a lawful lease or rental
agreement with the owner, whether oral or written. For purposes of this article, two
(2) or more persons who live together in a rental unit shall be considered one (1)

tenant.,

That Section 9-98B of the Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:

" Sec. 9-98B. - Reduction in assessment for rehabilitated structures.
(a)
The assessment on real property, which is determined to have two (2) or more
existing blight violations under this article and is within one thousand five hundred
(1,500) feet of residential property, shall, at the discretion of the City Assessor, be
adjusted as provided for in subsection (c¢) and pursuant to G.S. § 12-121e, provided
all other criteria established in this section are met.

(b)

Before such real property will be considered for a deferral under this section, a
"request for deferral” application shall be filed with the department of assessment
which shall include:
! 1

A description of the parcel;
(2)

A description of the planned improvements thereon and intended use;

3

An itemized estimate of the cost of those improvements; and

4

-7




A timetable detailing the schedule of improvements. :

(©) ‘ -

Real property that meets the requirements of subsections;{a) and (d) of this section
shall have the assessment on the building to be rehabilitated reduced for a period of
nine (9) years from the time such improvement has been completed and a certificate
of occupancy has been issued pursuant to section 35-69. Such adjusted assessment
shall reflect the value of the structure prior to rehabilitation and shall defer any
increase in assessment attributable to such improvement according to the following
schedule:

Expand

(d)

For a building to be considered for an assessment deferral under this section, the
following criteria shall be met:

(1

Residential (one- to four-family, co-ops and condominiums) and apartments (five-
family and up).

a.
The building shall be at least fifteen (15) years old.

b.
The investment in the building to be improved shall be at least thirty (30) percent of

the assessed value of said property as of the last revaluation.
c.
No building shall be eligible unless appropriate building permits have been

I acquired and applications for such permits are made at the same time as the filing
for an assessment deferral with the City Assessor.

d.
Any rehabilitated structure shall meet all zoning [requirements and conform to the

City plan of development] regulations of the planning and zoning commisgsion.

e.
Within seven (7) days of completion of improvements and issuance of a certificate of

occupancy, the Assessor shall be notified by the owner.
@
Commercial and industrial.

a.
The building shall be at least twenty (20) years old.

b.
The investment in the building to be improved shall be at least forty (40) percent of

the assessed value of said property as of the last revaluation.

c.
(| o building shall be eligible unless appropriate building permits have been
acquired and applications for such permits are made at the same time as the filing
for an assessment deferral with the City Assessor.

d.

-8-




Any rehabilitated structure shall meet all zoning [requirements and conform to the
City plan of development] regulations of the planning and zoning commission.

e. : : :

Within seven (7) days of completion of improvements and issuance of a certificate of
occupancy, the Assessor shall be notified.

(e)

For the purposes of revaluation, the market value prior to rehabilitation and the
post rehabilitated market value will fluctuate with the revaluation. The market
value of the property prior to rehabilitation will be adjusted by a factor equal to the
median change in value for the property use code as a result of the revaluation. The
post rehabilitated market value of the property will be recalculated with the
revaluation. In cases where rehabilitation has not been completed prior to the
implementation of a revaluation, the market value of the property will be
recalculated with the revaluation.

H

If rehabilitation work is not completed or a certificate of occupancy has not been
obtained within two (2) years of the date of the approval of the Assessment Deferral
application, a new application shall be filed with the Assessment Division and re-
approved for the property to maintain eligibility of the program. If the property is
transferred after program approval and before a certificate of occupancy for the
rehabilitation work has been issued, the new owner shall file a new application with
the Assessment Division prior to the commencement or recommencement of work
and would require re-approval for the property to maintain its program eligibility.

That Section 13-2 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 13-2. - Means of egress for roominghouses.

Every roominghouse in the city as defined in [chapter 35] chapter 18-3 of this Code
shall be provided with means of egress which will be adequate in case of fire. Means
of egress shall be deemed inadequate in any building used or occupied for
roominghouse purposes in which there are legs than two (2) means of exit, either by
stairways on the inside or fire escapes on the outside from each floor used or
occupied for such purposes. Such outside fire escapes shall be accessible through a
door without a locking device or bolt of any kind and shall be located as remotely as

possible from inside stairways.

That Section 22-26 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 22-26. - Fines and penalties for unlawful parking.

_9.




(a)

Definitions: For purposes of this section, and unless otherwise specified, the
definition of terms contained in title 14, chapter 246, section 14-1 and 14-260n of
the Connecticut General Statutes shall govern this section. For purposes of this
section the words "park" and "parked" shall mean to leave a vehicle stationary.

(b)

The fine shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00), with an initial penalty of thirty-eight
dollars ($38.00) and an additional penalty of thirty-eight dollars ($38.00), for any
vehicle to be and/or remain parked:

i1 (1)

During a state of emergency following public notice of the declaration of such
emergency, on private property without the permission of the owner, for a period of
time and in such a condition as to constifute a nuisance, or otherwise in violation of
state or local parking order, regulations or restrictions;

(2)

For a period exceeding a posted duration or restriction or otherwise allowable by
law;

(3)

For a period exceeding the authorized time duration purchased at any parking
meter;

@

In violation of the posted parking regulation;

(5

Over the legal limit at any parking meter by making additional payment to extend
the authorized parking time where restricted according to the posted parking
regulation; or

(6)

In any space or area that is demarcated as a downtown parking meter zone, and to
not utilize the appropriate parking meter zone designation to park.

(©)

The fine shall be thirty dollars ($30.00) and the vehicle subject to removal at the
owner's expense, with an initial penalty of forty-three dollars ($43.00) and an
additional penalty of forty-three dollars ($43.00), for parking:

(1

A distance greater than twelve (12) inches from a curb, measured from the vehicle's
passenger side wheels; or

(2)

Within twenty-five (25) feet of an intersection or a marked crosswalk thereat, or
within twenty-five feet of a stop sign erected by the traffic authority.

(d) .

The fine shall be forty-five dollars ($45.00) and the vehicle subject fo removal at the
owner's expense, with an initial penalty of thirty-eight dollars ($38.00) and an
additional penalty of forty-two dollars ($42.00), for parking:

-10 -




(1)
On the wrong side of a street or facing opposite traffic;

(2)

In a no-parking area, tow zone or the odd/even side of a street according to the

posted days;
(3}
In a marked bus stop;
4
In a no standing area;
(5)
In a loading zone;
(6)
Within five (5) feet of or obstructing a driveway or curb cut;
(7
In a vending space;
8)
By a vendor in an unauthorized vending space;
)]
By trespassing on private property;
(10)
While unlawfully repairing a motor vehicle within any city street or on public
property; or
(11)
So as to block a park entrance;
(12)
Non-payment of the meter parking; or
(13)
Parked over the line (marked boundary) of a parking space.
()
The fine shall be seventy-five dollars ($75.00) and subject to removal at owner's
expenses, with an initial penalty of twenty-three dollars ($23.00) and an additional
penalty of twenty-seven dollars ($27.00), for parking:
(1)
Within ten (10} feet of a hydrant;
(2)
In violation of fire and park rules and regulations;
(3)
On or obstructing a sidewalk;
@
On or obstructing a crosswalk;
(5)
So as to double park;
(6)
“11 -




e

Within or obstructing an intersection;

(7) \

So as to impede or obstruct pedestrian or vehicular traffic;

(8)

On any property between the street line and traveled portion of any street.

®

The fine shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00) and the vehicle subject to removal at
owner's expense, with an initial penalty of thirteen dollars ($13.00) and an
additional penalty of thirteen dollars ($13.00), for parking:

(D

In any area that is demarcated or otherwise designated a temporary no-parking
area to allow the removal of snow or ice; or

2) :

In violation of [zoning ordinances] the zoning regulations of the planning and zoning
commission; or

(3)

Any tractor, tractor-trailer, semi-trailer, truck, or commercial vehicle combination
on any city street(s) for more than three (3) hours, except for the purpose of delivery
or service taking less than eight (8) hours; [or]

D

A trailer or semi-trailer on any street or arterial highway unattached to a motor
vehicle, tractor or truck-tractor capable of towing it, except for the purpose of
delivery or service while loading or unloading at off-street platforms; or

(5)
Recreational vehicles, as defined in G.S. § 14-1, between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and

6:00 a.m.

(®)
The fine shall be one hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00) and the vehicle subject

to removal at the owner's expense, with an initial penalty of thirteen dollars
($13.00) and an additional penalty of thirteen dollars ($13.00), for parking by an
unauthorized person in a parking space designated for the handicapped and so

marked.

1)

By an unauthorized person in a parking space designated for the handicapped and
so marked.

That Section 22-106 of the Municipal Code -df Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 22-106. - Definitions.

-12 -




The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly
indicates a different meaning:

Commercial parking lot means an outdoor space or uncovered plot, place, lot, parcel
or enclosure or any portion thereof where more than fifteen (15) motor vehicles may
be parked, stored or kept at any one (1) time for which any charge is made.
Downtown parking district means the area contained generally within the
boundaries of the [B-1 Zone as identified in Chapter 35, Article III, Division 5 of the

Municipal Code] the DT (Downtown) zoning districts as defined in the zoning
regulations of the planning and zoning commission.

Motor vehicle means any automobile, truck, bus or other self-propelled vehicle not
operated on tracks or from trolleys.

That Section 22-111 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 22-111. - Duties of permittee.

(a)
The permittee of a commercial parking lot shall:

(D
When a vehicle is left for parking, furnish the owner or operator with a claim check
which shall have printed thereon the full name and address of the parking lot and a
number corresponding to a coupon attached thereto which shall be placed upon the
vehicle. The permittee shall not deliver any such vehicle without presentation of the
proper claim check or without satisfactory proof of ownership of such vehicle. This
provision shall not apply where a vehicle is parked on a weekly or monthly basis
and a memorandum bearing the full name and address of the parking [ot is given to
the owner thereof stating the arrangement;

(2)
Provide for such parking lot proper and adequate fire extinguishing apparatus
which shall be subject to the approval of the chief of the department of fire;

3
Post prominently at the entrance on each street of such parking lot a sign bearing
the name of the permittee, the hours of the day and night during which such lot
shall be open, the rates charged and the closing hours of such lot. Such sign shall be
uniformly displayed in conspicuous letters and figures of the same size;

@ '
Keep such lot lighted by some type of approved lighting device in such locations and
to such extent as shall be adequate to permit the owners of motor vehicles to have
reasonable access to all portions of such lot during the period from one-half hour
after sunset to one-half hour before sunrise for which such lot shall be open for

parking;
-13 -




(5)

Place a conspicuous sign at the entrance of the lot, reading "FILLED," whenever
such lot is filled with motor vehicles to its legalized capacity. Such sign shall be
displayed continuously as long as such condition exists.

(6)

Post in a prominent location the provisions of sections 22-110 and 22-111 and the
phone number of the director of licenses and inspections.

[¢d)]

Comply with the zoning regulations of the planning and zoning commission when
making improvements requiring site plan review or other zoning permit review.

()

In addition to the duties in subsection (a) above_and applicable duties of the zoning
regulations, commercial parking lots in the downtown parking district shall comply
and be subject to the following;

1)

All entrances and exits shall be approved by the city traffic engineer and shall
satisfy the following criteria:

a.

All exits and entrances shall be so located as to provide the least amount of
interference with the movement of pedestrians and vehicular traffic;

b

There shall be no exits or entrances on Main Street;

c.
There shall be no exits or entrances located within a designated bus loading or

unloading zone;

d.
There shall be a minimum distance of forty (40) feet between any two (2) curb cuts

i} and a minimum distance of seventy-five (75) feet between any curb cut and the
corner of any lot which is adjacent to two (2) streets;

e.
All entrances and/or exits shall be located a minimum distance of one hundred (100)

feet from the nearest entrance and/or exit ramp to a limited access highway, to be
measured along the street line from the point at which the street line intersects the
nearest highway taking line to the private, commercial and/or public parking lot
entrance and/or exit.

@

A private, commercial and/or public parking lot shall be used solely for the parking
of passenger vehicles. There shall be no commercial repair work or service of any
kind, no display of vehicles for purposes of sale or rental and no parking or storage
of inoperable or unregistered motor vehicles on such premises.

(3)

A landscaped area at least three (3) feet in width shall be provided between the
private, commercial and/or public parking lot and the existing street line or the

- 14 -




existing inner sidewalk line, whichever is furthest from the curb, for the full length
of all street, frontages excluding those areas required for curb cuts. \
(4)

No sign of any kind other than those designating entrances, exits and conditions of
use shall be erected or maintained, within a private, commercial and/or public
parking lot. Such sign shall not exceed twenty (20) square feet in area each, shall be
limited to one (1) sign per street frontage exclusive of exit/entrance signs, shall not
exceed an overall height of fifteen (15} feet, shall maintain the visibility at
intersections required in section 35-26 and shall not be located forward of the
building line.

()

All private, commercial and/or public parking lots shall be surfaced so as to provide
a durable and dustless all weather surface, and shall be so graded and drained as to
dispose of all surface water accumulations within the site. No surface water from
any such parking lot shall be permitted to drain onto adjoining property or across a
public sidewalk or right-of-way.

(6)

There shall be provided a wheel stop of either wood, metal or concrete not more
than one (1) foot in height and securely anchored into the ground on all sides of the
parking lot where there is a sidewalk, an existing structure, fence or required
landscaping. Such wheel stops shall be located at such a distance so that
automobiles will not strike the wall, fence or landscaping, nor will the automobile
extend over the sidewalk. As an alternative, a concrete or asphalt berm, serving the
same purpose may be provided.

M

Each commercial and/or public parking lot must be properly lighted. All lighting
used to illuminate such parking premises shall be so arranged as to reflect the light
away from any public street or right-of-way and from any adjoining premises
located in a residential district or any premises used for residential purposes.

(8)

Any person, partnership, or corporation operating a commercial parking lot without
a permit will be charged a fee of no less than two thousand five hundred dollars
($2,500.00) a day to operate such lot after proper notice has been posted on the lot
by the department of license and inspection. Individuals, officers of corporations and
partners operating commercial parking lot without a permit shall be fined no more
than one hundred dollars ($100.00) or imprisoned for no more than thirty (30) days.
This subsection will not apply to any corporation partnership or individual with a
pending permit application.

(9)

Any commercial parking lot in the downtown parking district in compliance with all
the requirements of Chapter 22, Article II, Division. V of the Code with the exception
of subsection (5) of this section on July 1, 2002 may receive a one-time permit for a
period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of i1ssuance.

-15 -




(10) ‘ .
| Any commercial parking lot in the downtown parking district in compliance with all-
the requirements of Chapter 22, Article II, Division V of the Code with the exception
of subsection (b)}(1)b. of this section on July 1, 2002, provided that the exit or
entrance on Main Street was in existence prior to April 1, 2002, may receive a
permit notwithstanding noncompliance with subsection (b)(1) b. of this section.

That Section 23-1 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 23-1. - Definitions.

" The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and enforcement of this
chapter: '

Ambient noise or background noise shall mean noise of a measurable intensity
which exists at a point as a result of a combination of many distant sources
individually indistinguishable. In statistical terms, it is the level which is exceeded
ninety (90) percent of the time (L90) in which the measurement is taken.

Chief of police shall mean the chief of police of the City of Hartford or a duly
authorized officer subject to his orders.

Commercial zone shall mean [all commercial and business zones (C-1, B-1, B-2, B-3,
B-4), as defined in the zoning regulations of the City of Hartford] the DT Downtown
and MS Main Street zoning districts, as defined in the zoning regulations of the
planning and zoning commission. Any use which is nonconforming shall be deemed
to be in the zone which corresponds to the actual use.

Construction shall mean any site preparation, assembly, erection, substantial
repair, alteration, or similar action, but excluding demolition, for or of public or
private rights-of-way, structures, utilities, or similar property.

Construction equipment shall mean any equipment or device operated by fuel or
electric power, used in construction or demolition work.

Day shall mean the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., Monday through
Saturday, and the hours 9:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m. on Sundays.

Decibel shall mean a logarithmic unit of measure used in measuring magnitudes of
sound. The symbol is dB.

Demolition shall mean any dismantling, intentional destruction or removal of
structures, utilities, public or private right-of-way surfaces or similar property.
Domestic power equipment shall mean, but not be limited to, power saws, drills,
grinders, lawn and garden tools and other domestic power equipment intended for
use in residential areas by a homeowner.

Emergency shall mean any occurrence or set of circumstances involving actual or
imminent physical trauma or property damage, which demands immediate action.

-16 -




Emergency vehicle shall mean any motor vehicle authorized by the City of Hartford
to have sound warning devices, such as sirens and bells, which can lawfully be used
when responding to an emergency. A

Emergency work shall mean work made necessary to restore property to a safe
condition following an emergency, or work required to protect persons or property
from exposure to imminent danger.

Impulse noise shall mean sound of short duration, usually less than one (1) second,
with an abrupt onset and rapid decay.

Industrial zone shall mean [all industrial (I-1 and I-2) zones, as defined in the
zoning regulations of the City of Hartford] the CX Commercial-Industrial Mix, and
ID Industrial zoning districts, as defined in the zoning regulations of the planning
and zoning commission. Any use which is nonconforming shall be deemed to be in
the zone which corresponds to the actual use.

Loud amplification device or similar equipment shall include, but not be limited to,
a radio, television, phonograph, stereo, record player, tape player, cassette player,
compact disc player, loud speaker or sound amplifier which is operated in such
manner that it creates noise.

Motor vehicle shall be defined as per G.S. § 14-1(47).

Muffler shall mean a device for abating sounds such as escaping gases.

Noise shall mean any sound, the intensity of which exceeds the standards set forth
in section 23-3 of this chapter or that is plainly audible at a distance of one hundred
(100) feet from its source.

Night shall mean the hours between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., Sunday evening
through Saturday morning, except, that night shall mean the hours between 10:00
p.m. Saturday and 9:00 a.m. Sunday.

Noise level shall mean the sound pressure level as measured with a sound level
meter using the A-weighting network. The level so read is designated dB(A) or dBA.
Person shall mean any individual, firm, partnership, association, syndicate,
company, trust, corporation, municipality, agency, or political or administrative
subdivision of the state or other legal entity of any kind.

Premises shall mean any building, structure, land, or portion thereof, including all
appurtenances, and shall include yards, lots, courts, inner yards, and real
properties without buildings or improvements, owned or controlled by a person. The
emitter's premises includes contiguous publicly dedicated street and highway
rights-of-way, all road rights-of-way and waters of the state.

Property line shall mean that real or imaginary line along the ground surface and
its vertical extension which:

1

Separates real property owned or controlled by any person from contiguous real
property owned or controlled by another person; and

(2 |

Separates real property from the public right-of-way.

217 -




Public right-of-way shall mean any street, avenue, boulevard, highway, sidewallk,
alley, park, waterway, railroad or similar place which is owned or controlled by a
governmental entity.

Recreational vehicle shall mean any internal combustion engine powered vehicle
which is being used for recreational purposes.

Residential zone shall mean [all residential (RO-1, RO-2, RO-3, R-1 through R-8), P
(public property and cemetery), as defined in the zoning regulations of the City of
Hartford] the N Neighborhood, NX Neighborhood Mix, and MX Multi-Use Mix
zoning districts, as defined in the zoning regulations of the planning and zoning
commission. Any use which is nonconforming shall be deemed to be in the zone
which corresponds to the actual use.

Sound shall mean a transmission of energy through solid, liquid, or gaseous media
in the form of vibrations which constitute alterations in pressure or position of the
particles in the medium and which, in air, evoke physiological sensations, including,
but not limited to, an auditory response when impinging on the ear.

Sound level meter shall mean an instrument used to take sound level
measurements and which should conform, as a minimum, to the operational
specifications of the American National Standards Institute for Sound Level Meters
S1.4—1971 (Type S2A).

Sound pressure level shall mean twenty (20) times the logarithm to the base ten
(10) of the ratio of the pressure of a sound to the reference pressure of twenty (20)
micronewtons per square meter (20 X 10 - 6 Newtons/meter 2), and is expressed in

decibels (dB).

That Section 26-41 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 26-41. - Alcoholic beverages prohibited generally; exceptions.

modified

(a)

Definitions:

"Alcoholic beverage" or "alcoholic liquor™ includes all varieties of liquor defined in
this section including alcohol, beer, spirits and wine and every liquid or solid,
patented or not, containing alecohol, spirits, wine or beer and capable of being
consumed by a human being for beverage purposes.

"Beer" means a beverage obtained by alcoholic fermentation of an infusion or
concoction of barley or other grain, malt and hops in water, and includes among
other things beer, ale, stout, lager beer, porter and the like.

"Bring your own beverage" is a term which means that the owner of an
establishment or host of an event will not be providing alcoholic beverages but that ‘
guests are welcome to bring their own if they choose.

~18 -




"Events", for purposes of this section, shall mean any public or private function held
on the grounds of a park, which may include the lawn avea, clubhouse, pond house,
recreational facility, pavilion, carousel or other amusement area of the park.

"Golf course" includes the area designated for play of the game of golf as well as the
property adjoining and used in conjunction with said area, including the driving
range area, practice green, club house, pro shop, restaurant, lounge, snack shop and
any areas adjacent thereto, all of which make up the golf course.

"Spirits" means any beverage which contains alcohol obtained by distillation, and
includes brandy, rum, whiskey, gin or other spirituous liquors when rectified,
blended or otherwise mixed with alcohol or other substances.

"Wine" means any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of natural
contents of fruit or vegetables, containing sugar, including such beverages when
fortified by the addition of alcohol, or other spirits, as above defined.

) :

General prohibitions and exceptions:

(1)

It shall be unlawful for any person to have alcoholic beverages or to be intoxicated
in any park, except that alcoholic beverages may be consumed under the following

circumstances:

a.
Beer and wine only may be sold and consumed at any event held at Bushnell Park,

excluding the Pump House Gallery and the Carousel Pavillion, provided that prior
to the event, the proper permission has been obtained from the City to hold the
event, the Council adopts a resolution approving such sale and consumption and the
location where said sale can take place within Bushnell Park, beverages are sold by
a vendor licensed by the Bureau of Licenses and Inspections under a permit issued
by the State of Connecticut Department of Consumer Protection, and proper proof of
liquor liability insurance is provided to the Risk Manager for the City of Hartford,

in an amount to be determined by said risk manager;

b

Alcoholic beverages may be sold and consumed at the Carousel Pavilion in Bushnell
Park, and adjacent secured areas within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the pavilion,
at private functions during which the carousel is closed to the public, provided that
prior to the event, the proper permission has been obtained from the City to hold
the event, the Council adopts a resolution approving such sale and consumption and
the location where said sale can take place within the pavilion, beverages are sold
by a vendor licensed by the Bureau of Licenses and Inspections under a permit
issued by the State of Connecticut Department of Consumer Protection, and proper
proof of liguor liability insurance is provided to the Risk Manager for the City of
Hartford, in an amount to be determined by said risk manager;

c.
Alcoholic beverages may be sold and consumed in connection with restaurant or bar
services at the Pump House Gallery in Bushnell Park or other events held at the

-19-




Pump House Gallery provided that the operator or manager of said facility obtains
proper liquor liahility insurance and a state liquor license;

d. :

Service of alcoholic beverages shall be allowed in the Elizabeth Park Pond House
Restaurant, which includes the outside patio area and auditorium, provided that
the operator or manager of said facility obtains proper liquor liability insurance and
state liquor licenses. For purposes of this subsection, "service of alcoholic beverages”
shall mean the service of alcoholic beverages on a "bring your own beverage" basis
in the restaurant for personal consumption with meals, and the service of wine and
beer provided by the sponsoring person or entity at events in the auditorium;

e.
Beer and wine may be sold and consumed at an event held at the Keney and
Goodwin Parks, not including the golf courses, Metzner Center, Willie Ware Center,
Hyland Center, Blue Hills Community Center, Pope Park Recreation Center, Kevin
D. Anderson Center and any other park in the City of Hartford not mentioned
herein provided that prior to the event, the proper permission has been obtained
from the City to hold the event, the Council adopts a resolution approving such sale
and consumption and the location where said sale can take place within said park
or location, beverages are sold by a vendor licensed by the Bureau of Licenses and
Inspections under a permit issued by the State of Connecticut Department of
Consumer Protection, and proper proof of liquoxr liability insurance is provided to
the Risk Manager for the City of Hartford, in an amount to be determined by said
risk manager;

f.
Alcoholic beverages may be sold and consumed at the Keney and Goodwin Park golf

courses pursuant to any applicable provisions of this section and all provisions of
section 26-42 of this chapter.

(2)

If a private individual sponsors an event at any of the locations specified in (b)(1)a.
of this section, but not including Keney and Goodwin Park golf courses, the Pump
House Gallery and the Elizabeth Park Pond House Restaurant and Auditorium, and
intends to serve alcoholic beverages, free of cost, the sponsor shall not be required to
obtain a permit from the state liqguor control commission. Prior to the event,
however, the sponsor must obtain (1) approval from the Council by way of resolution
for the service of such beverages; and (2) proper liquor liability insurance approved
by the City of Hartford Risk Manager. The service of such beverages may also be
subject to any special and further requirements of the City;

3) ‘- ‘

The sale or service of alcoholic beverages at the Elizabeth Park Pond House
Restaurant and Auditorium, the Pump House Gallery, and the Keney and Goodwin
Park golf courses is contingent upon the operator or manager of these facilities
obtaining proper liquor liability insurance and a state liquor license.

(4)
=20 -




[The provisions of Chapter 36 of the Code shall not apply to the sale and/or
consumption of alecoholic beverages under the provisions of this section or section
26-42 of this chapter.

(5)] !

The sale and/or consumption of alcoholic beverages at events held in city parks
pursuant to this and any other applicable section shall be subject to any further
conditions and regulations required by the Mayor or the Council to promote public

safety and welfare.

®)®)]

Alcoholic beverages may be sold and consumed within Dillon Stadium during
professional sporting events or other events promoted by the ownership group of a

| professional sports franchise under an agreement for use of the Stadium, provided
that the Operator or Manager of the Stadium, or a vendor licensed by the Division
of Licenses and Inspections under a permit igsued by the State of Connecticut
Department of Consumer Protection, provides proper proof of liquor liability
insurance to the Risk Manager for the City of Hartford, in amounts determined by
said Risk Manager, and a state liquor license is obtained by the requisite entity.
(O]

Alcoholic beverages may be consumed within the city-owned lot located at 260
Huyshope Avenue during the time period beginning three (3) hours prior and
ending thirty (30) minutes prior to the start of a professional sporting event or other
event promoted by the ownership group of a professional sports franchise under an
agreement for the use of Dillon Stadium, provided that proof of liability insurance,
in amounts set by the Director of the Office of Management, Budget and Grants for
the City of Hartford or their designee, is delivered to the City in advance of said

event.

H

That Section 28-1 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 28-1. - Alternate members of [commigsion on city plan] planning and zoning
COMMISSIoN.

(a)

il There shall be three (3) alternate members nominated by the mayor and confirmed
by the council as provided in chapter Il of the Charter, to the planning and zoning
commission [on the city plan], such alternate members to be electors of the city.
Every year one (1) alternate member shall be appointed to serve for three (3) years.
Such alternate members shall, when seated as provided in this section, have all the
powers and duties set forth in the General Statutes and the Charter for the
commission and its members. Such alternate members shall not be members of the
council or of the zoning board of appeals and shall serve without compensation.

(b)

-21-




If a regular member of the commission is absent, he may designate, in writing, an
alternate member of the commisgion to act in his place. If he fails to make such
designation or if he is disqualified, the chairman of the commission shall designate
an alternate to so act, choosing alternates in rotation so that they shall act as nearly
equal a number of times as possible. If any alternate is not available in accordance
with such rotation, such fact shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

That Section 28-2 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 28-2. - Alternate members of zoning board of appeals.

(a)

There shall be three (3) alternate members nominated by the mayor and confirmed

I by the council as provided in chapter ITT of the Charter to the zoning board of

appeals. Such alternate members shall be electors of the city. Every year, one (1)
alternate member shall be appointed to serve for three (3) years. Such alternate
members shall, when seated as provided in this section, have all the powers and
duties set forth in the General Statutes and the Charter for the board and its
members. Such alternate members shall not be members of the council or of the
planning and zoning commission [on the city plan] and shall serve without

compensation.

(b)

If a regular member of the board is absent, he may designate in writing an alternate
member of the board to act in his place. If he fails to make such designation or if he
is disqualified, the chairman of the board shall designate an alternate to so act,
choosing alternates in rotation so that they shall act as nearly equal a number of
times as possible. If any alternate is not available in accordance with such rotation,
such fact shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

That Section 28-3 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be repealed.

[Sec. 28-3. - Alternate members of zoning commission.

(a)

There shall be three (3) alternate members to the zoning commission elected by the
council. Each such alternate shall be an elector of the city. Such alternates shall be
elected by the council to serve for a term of two (2) years. Such alternate members
shall, when seated as provided in this section, have all the powers and duties set
forth in the General Statutes and the Charter for the zoning commission and its
members. Such alternate members shall not be members of the commission on the
city plan or of the zoning board of appeals and shall serve without compensation.

(b}
-7 -




If a regular member of the zoning commission is absent, he may designate in
writing to the town and city clerk an alternate member to act in his place. If such
regular member fails to make such written designation or if he is disqualified, the
mayor shall designate an alternate member to so act, choosing alternates'in rotation
so that they shall act as nearly equal a number of times as possible. Any regular
member who is disqualified for any reason including private, personal or pecuniary
interest in the subject matter before the zoning commission shall announce his
disgualification in writing to the town and city clerk. The town and city clerk shall
immediately notify the mayor of such letter of disqualification. If any alternate is
not available in accordance with such rotation, such fact shall be recorded in the

minutes of the meeting.}

That Section 28-4 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 28-4. - Adoption of General Statutes on planning and zoning; establishment of
planning and zoning commission.

(a) '
As required by the Charter as revised, the city hereby adopts the provisions of
Chapter 124 of the General Statutes.

(b)
As required by the Charter as revised, the city hereby adopts the provisions of

Chapter 126 of the General Statutes.

(©)

Pursuant to the Charter as revised and the General Statufes, the commission on the
city plan is hereby designated as the city's planning and zoning commission with all
the powers and duties of both a planning commigsion and a zoning commission
under the General Statutes. The planning and zoning commission hereby
established supersedes the commission on the city plan as the city's planning
commission and the council as the city's zoning commission,

(d)

Said planning and zoning commission shall be comprised of seven (7) electors of the
city, not counting nonvoting members who, pursuant to the Charter as revised,
initially shall be the members of the commission on the city plan at the time of the
establishment of the planning and zoning commission. Any rules of whatever nature
governing the appointment, removal, terms, alternates, officers, records, meetings,
and organization of the commission on the city plan in effect immediately prior to
the establishment hereby of the planning and zoning commission shall continue in
full forece and effect and shall govern the planning and zoning commission, insofar
as permitted by and not superseded by the General Statutes.

(e)
-3 -




Without limiting the foregoing subsection in any way, all ordinances and
regulations adopted by the council and the commission on the city plan related to
planning and zoning in effect immediately prior to the establishment hereby of the-
planning and zoning commission shall continue in full force and effect, insofar as
permitted by and not superseded by the General Statutes.

@

The city council and municipal agencies shall not take final action on any of the
activities defined in General Statutes section 8-24 until such action shall be referred

to the planning and zoning commission, and the commigsion shall have reported

thereon, provided the council or agency may assume that a failure of such
commigsion to report within thirty-five days after the date of official submission is
an approval of such proposal. A proposal disapproved by the commission shall be
treated in accordance with General Statutes section 8-24.

That Section 28-6 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 28-6. - [Zoning] Planning and zoning commission designated inland wetlands

agency. ,
The planning and zoning commission of the city is designated as the inland
wetlands agency of the city. Such inland wetlands agency shall have all powers
which are granted to inland wetlands agencies, as provided by law.

That Section 28-7 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be repealed.

[Sec. 28-7. - Establishment of Energy Improvement Districts.
(2)
The Court of Common Council finds that taking advantage of the density of the City
of Hartford by, among other strategies, maximizing the use of efficient, renewable,
small-scale power generation and distribution techniques should be an important
element of the City's economic development and neighborhood revitalization
1 strategies. Such techniques shall include:
(1)
Customer-side distributed resources;
(i1)
Grid-side distributed resources;
(i1i) ~
Combined heat and power systems;
(iv) ‘
Class ITI renewable energy sources with virtual net metering;

(v)
_24 -




—

Neighborhood-based Energy Efficiency pro;[ects for housing of one (1) to four (4)
units or larger; and :

(vi)

Micro-grids,

as defined or described in the Connecticut General Statutes and the Regulations of
the Public Utilities Regulatory Authority. The Energy Improvement District
Planning Committee may add techniques to this list.

(b)

In accordance with (i.S. §§ 32-80a, 32-80b, and 32-80c, there is hereby created the
Energy Improvement District Planning Committee, which shall consist of the
Director of Development Services of the City of Hartford, or the Director's designee;
the Director of Planning of the City of Hartford, or the Director's designee; two (2)
members of Court of Common Council to be appointed by the Mayor after
consultation with the Council President and subject to confirmation by the Council;
one (1) representative of the City's Neighborhood Revitalization Zone committees to
be appointed by the Mayor after consultation with Hartford 2000 ("Hartford 2000"
includes any successor agency that is the association of all of the NRZs in Hartford)
subject to confirmation by the Council; and up to three (3} additional members with
relevant particular skills and knowledge, who shall not be subject to the residency
requirement of Chapter VII section 1(e) of the Charter, to be appointed by the
Mayor subject to confirmation by the Council. The members of the Committee shall
elect the Chairperson for the group on the first meeting before July 1, 2014.

©

The Energy Improvement District Planning Committee shall, by November 1, 2014,
complete the following tasks:

1.
Define the role that the techniques identified in Section (a) or by the Energy

Improvement District Planning Committee itself should play in the economic
development strategy and/or neighborhood revitalization strategies of the City;

2.

Define criteria for determining whether particular proposals for projects to create
such techniques would be beneficial to the City and its residents;

3.

Define criteria for determining whether the powers granted by Connecticut General
Statutes sections 32-80a, 32-80b, and 32-80c¢ would assist projects identified as

beneficial;

4,
Engage in a detailed discussion with Hartford 2000 (about the creation of an Energy

Improvement District Technical Assistance Center that will be staffed and able o
provide technical assistance and information to NRZs that wish to propose the
development of Energy Improvement Districts to benefit their neighborhoods.

5.

-25 -




Provide a report on the results of completing the tasks identified in paragraphs 1, 2,
3 and 4 to the Mayor, City Council and Hartford 2000 by December 1, 2014.

(d)

The Energy Improvement District Planning Committee shall also complete the
following tasks:

1.

Solicit proposals that meet the criteria identified in Section (c) paragraphs (2) and
(3) above from Hartford Neighborhood Revitalization Zones. In seeking to identify
such projects, the Committee shall both solicit proposals and seek to encourage
them through both public events and private meetings;

2.
Review all proposed projects against the criteria defined in a0001dance with Section
3 paragraphs 2 and 3;

3.
Engage in a detailed discussion with the Neighborhood Revitalization Zone

Committees for any neighborhood that encompasses or would be affected by any
project that the Energy Improvement District Planning Committee tentatively
concludes may be worthy of development. The Planning Committee shall not
proceed further with regard to any project that is not approved by the relevant
Neighborhood Renewal Zone Committees; and

4,
Recommend to the Mayor and Council the creation of one (1) or more Energy

Improvement Districts for the purpose of facilitating the development of renewable,
small-scale power and distribution facilities. An annual report to the Mayor and
Council shall:

a.
Set forth a summary of the activities in which the Energy Improvement District

Planning Committee has engaged;

b.
Describe in detail any project the Committee recommends for further development

and the activities of the Committee relating to each such project;

c.
Recommend the boundaries of and the structure of the board for each Energy

Improvement District recommended by the Committee, provided that any Energy
Improvement District board shall include at least one (1) member recommended by
the committee of each Neighborhood Revitalization Zone that includes any part of a
proposed Energy Improvement District within its boundaries;

d. ! : \
Recommend any changes needed in the City Ordinances or the Connecticut General
Statutes with respect to the authorities that each proposed Energy Improvement
District board should be granted.

e.

226 -




hin
—

Document whether the EID projects have improved energy usage through either

Jower cost, less carbon or other pollutant emissions, or reduced demand.

(Oxd. No. 06-14, 4-28-14)]

That Section 31-2 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be repealed.

[Sec. 31-2. - Director of Public Works to exercise authority granted by statute to
commission on City plan, concerning highways.

The powers provisionally granted to the commission on the City plan concerning
highways, streets and sidewalks by G.S. § 8-29, being substantially similar to those
now possessed by the Director of Public Works under Chapter XI, Section 3 of the
Charter, the commission on the City plan shall not exercise such powers.]

That Section 31-32 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 31-32. - Regulations, specifications authorized.

The Director of Public Works may adopt from time to time such rules, regulations
and specifications for the conduct of the work provided for by this article as he may
deem for the best interest of the City. It shall be unlawful for any person to violate
any such rule, regulation or specification or any applicable provigion of the zoning

regulations of the planning and zoning commission.

That the title of Article VII of Chapter 31 of the Municipal Code shall be
amended as follows:

ARTICLE VII. — [STREET PERFORMANCES AND DISPLAY OF FLAGS]
SUBDIVISIONS AND RESUBDIVISIONS

That Section 31-176 of the Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:

Sec. 31-176. — [Subdivision defined] Generally.
[For the purpose of this article, the word "subdivision" means the division of a tract

or parcel of land into three (3) or more lots in such a manner as to require the
provision of a street for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of sale.or
building development, and shall include resubdivision, Resubdivision means a
change in a map of an approved or recorded subdivision or resubdivision if such

change:

(1)

Affects any street layout shown on such map;

-27 -




(2)

Affects any area reserved thereon for public use; or

(3)

Diminishes the size of any lot shown thereon and creates an additional building lot,
if any of the lots shown thereon have been conveyed after the approval or recording

of such map.]
For the purpose of this article, the words subdivision and resubdivision shall have

{’ . " . . » . - - .
the meaning defined in the subdivision regulations of the planning and zoning

commission. The nature of the applications and their submission, required notices

and hearings, and decision-making criteria shall be ag prescribed by such
subdivision regulations.

i That Section 31-177 of the Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:

Sec. 31-177. - Approval prerequisite to recording.

No map or plan of land in the City showing any proposed street or subdivision or
any proposed extension or change in the establigshed layout of any existing street or
subdivision shall be filed or recorded in the Office of the City Clerk without having

Il been endorsed as approved by the planning and zoning commission jon the City

plan]. Such endorsement shall be made by the secretary or chairman of such
commission and shall indicate the date of the commission's action.

That Sections 31-178 through 31-181 of the Municipal Code of Hartford

il shall be repealed.

[Sec. 31-178. - How map or plan to be submitted; fee.

Any request for approval of a map or plan showing any proposed street or any
proposed extension or change in the established layout of any existing street or any
subdivision shall be submitted to the commission through its secretary and shall be
accompanied by three (3) plans. One (1) plan shall be in size and material
prescribed by the General Statutes for filing such plan with town clerks. The two (2)
other plans may be prints. The commigsion may, if it deems it necessary, require
that further survey measurements or similar data be added to the plans as
submitted to establish the definite location of any proposed street or subdivision or
any proposed extension or change in the established layout of any existing street or
subdivision. Any request for approval of a map or plan, unless made by a
department or agency of the City, shall be accompanied by a fee of ten dollars
($10.00) which shall be payable in advance to the secretary of the commission.

(Code 1977, § 30-127)

Sec. 31-179. - Notice and hearing.
-28 -




Every map or plan submitted to the commission shall contain the name and address
of the person to whom notice of the hearing thereon is to be sent. No map or plan
shall be acted upon by the commission without a hearing had thereon not less than
fifteen (15) days after such submission, except that the commission shall not be
required to have a hearing on a subdivision or resubdivision application filed in
connection with a group dwelling development, planned area development or
planned residential development. Notice of the time and place of such hearing shall
if be published once in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the City as provided
in section 2-4 at least ten (10) days before such hearing, and such notice shall also
be sent by mail, postage paid, to the person whose name and address appears on
such map or plan.

(Code 1977, § 30-128)

Sec. 31-180. - Decision by commissgion.

The commission shall approve or disapprove such map or plan within sixty (60) days
after such hearing, except that the commission shall take action and report its
findings to the zoning board of appeals in the case of a group dwelling development
and to the council in the case of a planned area development or planned residential
development as set forth in the provisions of chapter 35. Otherwise, such map or
plan shall be deemed to have been approved, and a certificate to that effect shall be
issued by such commission on demand. The reagons for the commission's action
shall be stated upon the records of such commission.

(Code 1977, § 30-129)

Sec. 31-181. - When approval to be withheld.

(a) -

The commission shall withhold approval of any map or plan if any proposed street
or any proposed extension or change in the established layout of any existing street
shown thereon or any other feature shown does not conform to the plans for
development of the City or any portion thereof or to any recommendations thereof
which the commission may have made or may be making in conformity with chapter
XTX, section 2 of the Charter, nor shall approval be given to the location of any
proposed street or any proposed extension or change in the established layout of any

existing street which:

1

Does not make access possible to all of the land which might or should be served by
such proposed street or any proposed extension or change in the established layout
of any exigting street;

(2) ‘

Which is so aligned or located as to create a hazard to public safety;

(3)

Which cannot be extended to connect with other streets or subdivisions;

(4)

-29-




For the construction of which excessive grading would be required;

®) |
Which is of insufficient width for the anticipated traffic thereon;

(6)

Which lies in an area subject to stream overflow or flooding of a nature deemed to
be detrimental to development or use of abutting land;

(7)

Which otherwise violates the generally accepted principles of city planning and
economics of land use.

(b)

No such map or plan shall be approved contrary to any regulations which such
commission may make under powers conferred on it by the Charter or by General
Statutes or on which are shown any lot, tract, dimension or area in conflict with the

provisions of Chapter 35.]

That Section 31-218 of the Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:

Sec. 31-218. - Permitted locations; conduct.

(a) '

Performance may be permitted in outdoor public areas in the following zoning
districts: [C-1, B-1, B-2, B-3, and B-4] the DT (Downtown) Districts, the MS
Districts, and the Transit-Oriented Development Overlay District. If the zoning
code is changed or new zoning districts created, this division will be amended to
comply with such changes or amendments.

(b)
A performer may not block the passage of the public through a public area. If a
crowd gathers to see or hear a performer such that the passage of the public
through a public area is blocked, a police officer may disperse that portion of the
crowd that is blocking the passage of the public. If the blocking of passage persists,
the officer shall cause the performer to relocate to a less congested area.

©

Tt shall be unlawful for any performer to totally obstruct streets and sidewalks or to
interrupt free passage along them.

(d)

No performer or group of performers shall perform at a distance of less than two
hundred (200) feet from another performer ox group of performers that already is
performing. :

(e)

Street performing shall not infringe on events for which a permit has been issued so
as not to detract from the stated purpose of the permittee or permit organization.

That Sections 81-236 to 31-239 of the Municipal Code shall be repealed.
230 -




[Sec. 31-236. - Installations authorized.

Any regularly constituted organization of war veterans of the City may install in the
sidewalks of the City flag sockets designed to hold poles or staffs for the purpose of
creating a system of uniform display of flags on the business streets of the City.

Sec. 31-237. - Permit required; security to be given.

No flag display installation shall be made until a written permit has been issued
therefor by the bureau of licenses and inspections and approved by the Director of
Public Works. Before any such permit is issued, the applicant must file evidence of a
public liability policy satisfactory to the purchasing agent with public works in a
sum sufficient to indemnify the City for any liability incurred, and to held the City
harmless for injuries to persons or property caused by the installation or
maintenance of any such socket, staff, device or equipment in connection therewith
but with limits not less than two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.00) for
personal injury to any one (1) person and five hundred thousand dollars
($500,000.00) for personal injury for nay one (1) occurrence and two hundred fifty
thousand dollars ($250,000.00) for property damage or five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000.00) combined single limit (CSL). Such policy shall remain in force
for one (1) year after such installation or until the flag or banner is removed.

Sec. 31-238, - Supervision of installations; specifications.

Every flag display socket under this division shall be ingtalled under the general
supervision of the Director of Public Works and, together with the flag display outfit
or equipment to be used therewith, shall conform to the specifications laid down by

him.

Sec. 31-239. - What flags may be used.

Each flag to be displayed under this division shall be approximately three (3) by five
(5) feet in size and shall consist of fast color material. No flag, banner or decoration
of any kind, other than an American flag, or flag or banner of the American Red
Cross or the United Fund or such flags as may be approved by resolution of the
council shall be displayed on any such pole or staff at any time. The American flag
shall be displayed thereon only on patriotic occasions, on days of public celebration

or in connection with public parades.]

That Section 32-15 of the Mﬁnicipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 32-15. - Realty acquired by city for taxes or assessments.
Whenever the City has acquired title to any real estate through the strict
foreclosure of any tax or assessment lien, or through the conveyance of such title to

-31 -




the City to satisfy a claim for assessments or taxes, the tax collector shall report the
acquisition of such real estate to the [City plan] planning and zoning commission
and shall submit to such commission an annual report of all real estate in his

possession.

That Section 32-21 of the Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:

Sec. 32-21. - Reduction in assessment for home improvements.

(a)

The assessment on residential real property, which has undergone improvements as
approved by and with the assistance of the Connecticut Housing Finance Authority
under the Urban Rehabilitation Homeownership Program, shall be reduced for a
period of five (5) years from the time such improvement have been completed,
pursuant to P.A. 01-9, Section 81, provided all other criteria established in this

section are met.

(b)

Before such real property will be considered for a deferral under this section, a
"request for assessment deferral" application shall be filed with the department of

agsessment that shall include:

(1)
A description of the parcel;

(2)

A description of the planned improvements thereon and intended use;

3)

An itemized estimate of the cost of those improvements;

4)

A timetable detailing the schedule of improvements, with the completion of such
rehabilitation by a date fixed; and

(5)

The ingpection and certification by the local building official that the completed
rehabilitation is in conformance with such provisions of the state huilding and
health codes and the local housing code as may apply.

(©)

For a building to be considered for an assessment deferral under this section, the
following criteria must be met:

(1) |

Must be one-to-four family, residential real property.

(2)
No building ghall be eligible unless appropriate building permits have been

acquired.

(3)

-32 -




Any rehabilitated structure must meet all [zoning requirements and conform to the
City plan of development] zoning regulations of the planning and zoning
COmMmMIssion.

(4)

Within seven (7) days of completion of improvements, the assessor must be notified.
(5) '

The applicant must continue to reside at the property during the period of said
deferral.

(d)

For purposes of revaluation, should a general revaluation happen in the year in
which such rehabilitation is completed, resulting in an increase in the assessment of
such property, only that portion of the increase resulting from such rehabilitation
shall be deferred; and in the event of a general revaluation in any year after the
year in which such rehabilitation is completed, such deferred assessment shall be
increased or decreased in proportion to the increase or decrease in the total
assessment on such property as a result of such general revaluation.

That Section 32-22 of the Municipal Code shall be amended as follows:

Sec. 32-22. - Deferral of agsessment for home improvements.

(a)
Any increase in the assessment of residential real property attributable to the
rehabilitation or improvement thereof with assistance provided by the Connecticut
Housing Finance Authority under the Urban Rehabilitation Homeownership
Program shall be deferred for a period of five (5) years from the date such
rehabilitation or improvement is completed, in accordance with Public Act 01-9,
section 81, provided that all other criteria established in this section are met,

(b)
To be eligible for such deferral, real property owners must complete and file with
the department of assessment an "assessment deferral application”, which shall

include:

1)

A description of the property including address, map, lot and block number;

@)

A description of the planned improvements thereon and intended uses;

®)

An itemized estimate of the cost of the said improvements; and

(4)

A timetable detailing the schedule of improvements with the completion of such
rehabilitation by a date fixed. ‘

(©

-33 -




As a prerequisite for consideration of a building for assessment deferral, the
following criteria must be met:

(1

Such property must be classified as residential, owner- occupled one-to-four family
property;

2)

Appropriate permits must be acquired;

(3)

Rehabilitated building must meet all zoning [requirements and conform to the City
plan of development] regulations of the planning and zoning commiggion; and

(4)

The assessor must be notified of completion of rehabilitation within seven (7) days
thereof.

(d)

Upon approval of the said application, the property owner shall enter into an
agreement with the City of Hartford, which agreement shall provide for:

(1)

The completion of such rehabilitation by a date fixed;

(2)

The continued residence of the property owner in such property during the period of
said deferral; and

(3)

The inspection and certification by the local building official that the completed
rehabilitation would be in conformance with such provision so the state building
code and the local housing code as may apply.

()

For purposes of revaluation, should a general revaluation be conducted in the year
in which such rehahilitation is completed, resulting in an increase in the
assessment of such property, only that portion of the increase resulting from such
rehabilitation shall be deferred; and in the event of a general revaluation in any
year after the year in which such rehabilitation is completed, such deferred
assessment shall be increased or decreased in proportion to the increase or decrease
in the total assessment on such property as a result of such general revaluation.
)

At the end of the five-year period of assessment deferral, the subject residential
property shall be assessed in accordance with G.S. § 12-40 et seq.

That Section 36 7 of the Municipal Code of Hartford shall be amended as
follows:

Sec. 36-7. - Council authority.

~34 -




The final decision as to the type of art, location of the.art, the work of art to be
commissioned and the cost of the art shall rest solely with the court of common

council subject to the zoning regulations.

-35 -




TTEMY# ? ON AGENDA

Lule A. Bronin
Mayor

April 27, 2020

Honorable Maly D. Rosado, Council President, and
Members of the Court of Common Council

City of Hartford

550 Main Street

Hartford, CT 06103

RE:  Ordinanee Revision Regarding Office of Human Relations

Dear Council President Rosado,

Attached for your consideration is an amendment to Section 2-102 of the Hartford Municipal Code, currently

entitled, “Office of Human Relations.” The intent of this proposed revision is to expand the role and
responsibilities of the Office of Human relations to ensure the City is actively promoting diversity and inclusion
in our hiring processes, across City operations more broadly, and in partnership with our Human Resources -

Department.
This amendment expands the Office of Human Relations’ scope of responsibilities to include administering and

ensuring compliance with City policies related to equal employment opportunity, affirmative action, and the
Americans with Disabilities Act, as well as developing and conducting training related to diversity and

inelusion.

This amendment would shift responsibility for contract compliance from what is now known as the Office of
Human Relations to the Procurement Division of Finance Department, as was the case prior to 2017,

Finally, this amendment renames this office as the “Office of Equity and Opportunity” to clarify its role and
reflect its mission, and places it within the Office of the Chief Operating Officer.

Corporation Counsel and the Chief Opelatmg Officer are happy to answer any questions you may have. Thank
you for your consideration.

Respectiully submitted, -

ﬂ%@uw

Tulke A. Bronin
Mayor

550 Main Street
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
Telephone (860) 757-9500
Facsimile (860) 722-6606




Introduced by: f[| MAYOR LUKE A. BRONIN

HEADING
AND
PURPOSE

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, SECTION 102 OF THE HARTFORD

MUNICIPAL CODE

COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL,
CITY OF HARTFORD

April 27, 2020

Be It Ordained by the Court of Common Council of the City of Hartford:

E That Chapter 2, Section 102, of the Municipal Code of the City of Hartford be amended as
follows:

Office of [human relations] Equity and Opportunity.
(1) There shall be an [office of human relations] Office of Equity and Opportunity within the
[Finance department] Office of the Chief Operating Officer responsible for:

nl (a) Fostering equality and understanding by supporting the efforts of the city's policy leadership
in seeking social and economic justice for all Hartford residents.

(b) Providing advice and comment to the mayor on matters pertaining to equal opportunity and
affirmative action. '

(c) Providing direct support for the commission on human relations, the commission on
disability issues, the permanent commission on the status of Hartford women, the Hartford
commission on lesbian, gay, bisexual and fransgender issues and the civilian police review

Ew board in accordance with their functions and duties as set forth in this Code.

(d) Providing regular reports to the Mayor and Council [on the activities of the office, including

compliance by developers and contractors with the provisions of the living wage ordinance
Ei and resident hiting requirements. Such report shall also include information] on the
activities of the Civilian Police Review Board and other boards and commissions supported

by the office. ‘
EI () Administering, and ensuring compliance with, City of Hartford policies and procedures
related to equal employment opportunity, affitmative action, and the Americans with
Disabilities Act. incleding conducting and/or overseeing investigaiions of complaints of
P' violation of said policies and serving as the City’s ADA Coordinator,

R
—




|

I

(f) _ Developing and conducting training on matters relating to diversity, inclusion, equal
employment opportunity and affirmative action.

(?) The office shall be staffed by a director, who shall report directly to the Chief [Financial]
Operating Officer [and Director of Finance] and who shall be a resident of the city, and the
staff necessaty carry out its functions.

[(a) Prior to Janvary 1, 2018, the Mayor may assign an acting director and personnel from
other departments to temporarily staff the office. ]

This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.




ITEM# g ON AGENDA

INTRODCED BY: COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Council President Maly D. Rosado City of Hartford, June §, 2020
Majority Leader Thomas J. Clarke IT

Councilman James Sanchez

Councilwoman Marilyn Rossetti

Councilman Nick Lebron

Councilwoman Shirley Surgeon

Councilman John Gale

Councilwoman Wildaliz Bermudez

Councilman Josh Michtom

WHEREAS, The City of Hartford’s policy regarding Sexual Harassment was updated as of
October 1, 2019 as City of Hartford Policy 006; and

WHERFEAS, The Court of Common Council is fully committed to the principle established in the
Policy that all “employees deserve to work in a setting free from all forms of conduct that may be
considered harassing or disruptive, that interferes with another employee’s wotk performance, or
that creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile work environment, including sexual harassment”;

and

WHEREAS, It is the intent of the Court of Common Council to apply this updated policy to its
members, employees, the City and Town Clerk, and employees of that Office; and

WHEREAS, By this Resolution the Court of Common Council agrees to follow the training and
re-training requirements in the Policy and the process for filing complaints provided for therein;

now therefore be it
RESOLVED, That the Court of Common Council hereby ratifies Policy 006 on Sexual

Harassment, promulgated and signed by Mayor Luke Bronin on October 1, 2019, as the Policy of
the City of Hartford and specifically the Court of Common Couneil.




ITEM# CZ\ . ONAGENDA

INTRODCED BY: COURY OF COMMON COUNCIL
Council President Maly D. Rosado City of Hartford, June 8, 2020
Majority Leader Thomas J. Clarke II '

Councilman Nick Lebron

Councilwoman Marilyn Rossetii

Councilman James Sanchez

Councilwoman Shirley Surgeon

Councilman John Gale

WHERFEAS, Pursuant to Chapter VIIL, Section 3(b){ii) of the Charter, the Court of Common
Council (the “Council”) is permitted to obtain legal advice on a wide range of topics in addition

to the advice of Corparation Council; and

WHERFEAS, Pursuant to Section 2-47 of Chapter 2 of the Code of the City of Hartford
enumerates the specific qualifications of the position of Legislative and Legal Advisor to the
Council; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the Code, the Council President wishes to appoint an attorney, to the
position of Legislative and Legal Advisor; now, therefore be it

RESOLVED, That the Council hereby empowers the Council President to select a Legislative
and Legal Advisor to serve the Court of Common Council, who is a Hartford resident, and at an
hourly rate of pay not to exceed $250.00 and provided further that the Council President shall not
engage such counsel until the Council has, by resolution, indicated specifically the scope of the
services to be provided and the particular counsel to provide said services.




remt /$ ONAGENDA

INTRODUCED BY: COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Thomas J. Clarke IT, Majority Leader City of Hartford, June 8, 2020
Council President Maly Rosado

James Sanchez, Councilman

John Gale, Councilman

Shirley Surgeon, Councilwoman

WHEREAS, Members of our community are keenly aware of the prejudices and implicit biases that exist
in the criminal justice system which are exacerbated by a fundamental lack of transparency and oversight

regarding policing practices; and

WHEREAS, The lack of accountability procedures external to police control remains a key detriment to
ensuring responsible policing and safer communities; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, The Hartford Police Accountability Review Board (PARB) shall be created as an
independent body not tied to the Hartford Police Department, and shall consider reforms regarding
policing practices, such as those discussed in President Obama’s Task Force on 21st Century Policing.
The board will also engage directly with the Hartford community and submit formal recommendations
on a number of policies and issues including, but not limited to: cadet recruitment, hiring practices,
staffing for managerial and command positions, training practices including de-escalation techniques,
appropriate use of weapons and equipment, and community oufreach initiatives; and be it further

RESOLVED, The Hartford PARB will meet at least once each month at City Hall. The committee
meetings shall be open to the public and residents are encouraged to attend and voice their concerns and

ideas to ensure responsible policing that protects our community; be it further

RESOLVED, The Court of Common Council shall use this resolution and references attached as a guide
to create and work with the Mayor to adopt a city ordinance; be it further

RESOLVED, That the Court of Common Council shall continue to work with multiple civil rights
organizations to help create policies and procedures that will be more equitable and just with a goal in

mind to end discriminatory and unjust policing practices; be it further

RESOLVED, That upon all approvals and authorizations provided this action will be sent to the
Connecticut General Assembly's Black & Puerto Rican Legislative Caucus urging them to adopt this

action statewide,

Hartford - Police Accountability Review Board Resolution

Goal: To create an independent civilian oversight board for the Hartford Police Department.

The goal of the board will be fo monitor recruilment to the hiring practices, monitor the staffing
levels, promotions and managerial/command positions within PD fo ensure the department is racially
balanced which includes those in command positions.




The board will be composed of at least 11 Hartford residents, members of civil rights organizations,
legal professionals and city personnel who will be appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by City

Couneil and will serve for at least two-year terms.

The board will be an independent agency not tied to the Hartford police department. The board will
engage directly with the Hartford community and give advice on a number of issues not limited to:

Cadet recruitment
Hiring practices, staffing levels, promotions, managerial/command positions

Training practices including de-escalation techniques

Appropriate use of weapons and equipment
Tssue its own reviews and recommendations of the Police Department that are separate from

the Civilian Police Review Board

The board will meet at least one time per month. - Committee meetings are open to the public and
residents are encouraged to attend and voice their concerns/ideas.

Similar Commissions Across the Country:

Berkeley PDC

Composed of 9 Berkeley residents who are appointed by the Mayor and City Council (anyone
over age of 18 can apply).

PRC is an independent, civilian oversight agency to the Police Department.

The PRC advises city leaders and the BPD on police policies and investigates complaints by
members of the public against police officers.

It is empowered to review and advise on any function of the department including but not -
limited to: hiring, training, use of weapons and equipment and development.

The PRC continually seeks feedback from the community, and PRC regular and
subcommittee meetings are open to the public; everyone is welcome,

Sacramento Community Police Commission

L

Seatile -

The commission is established for the purpose of providing recommendations to the mayor
and city council on bias-free policing and the implementation, evaluation, and sustainability
of efforts intended to strengthen community-police relations.

Composed of 11 Sacramento residents

Members can serve an max of 2 4 year terms

Commission meets twice a month.

Actual Ordinance Included

CPC focuses more broadly on addressing systemic issues through changes to policies and
practices that improve performance and support a culture of accountablhty in the Seattle

Police Department and OPA.

Rochester, NY Board

« Independent investigative authority as an agency of city government independent from the

[

RPD;
Subpoena power to compel the production of evidence and witnesses;
The authority to conduct misconduct hearings;




e Disciplinary authority; and
» The power to evaluate systemic patterns, practices, policies, and procedures of the RPD to
recommend changes and prevent misconduct. -

Reforming Policing Practices Recommendations

President Obama’s Task Force on 21st Century Policing

This task force prepared recommendations, each with action items, organized around six main topic
areas or “pillars:

o Building Trust and Legitimacy

» DPolicy and Oversight

« Technology and Social Media,

o Community Policing and Crime Reduction
» Officer Training and Education

» Officer Safety and Wellness.




ITEM# /1 _ ON AGENDA

INTRODUCED BY: COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
Thomas J. Clarke II, Majority Leader City of Hartford, June 8, 2020

Maly Rosado, Council President

Shirley A, Surgeon, Councilwoman

James Sanchez, Councilman

Marilyn Rossetti, Councilwoman

Nick Lebron, Councilman

WHERFEAS, The Charter of the Citynof I&artford was adopt;c-lm in 1947 and last amended
on November 5, 2013; and

WHEREAS, Section 5 of Chapter XIII the Charter requires the Court of Common Council
to appoint a Charter Revision Commission in “...April of 2011, and every ten (10) years

thereafter;” and,

WHEREAS, The Court of Common Council has, from time to time, encountered issues
of magnitude and import to the operation of the City and effective representation of the people of
this City that would benefit from a thorough review by a Charter Revision Commission.

NOW THEREFOR BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to the provisions of C.G.S. §7-186
through 7-194, specifically §7-188(b) and Section 5 of Chapter XIII of the Charter, the Court of
Common of the City of Hartford hereby initiates an action to amend the current charter by
authorizing the creation of a Charter Revision Commission, acting by a two-thirds vote ofits entire

membership; and, be it further.

RESOLVED, that said Commission shall be empaneled for the purpose of undertaking a
thorough review of the current Charter and all aspects of the structure of City Government; and be

it further .

RESOLVED, pursuant to C.G.S. §7-190, that within thirty (30) days following initiation
of the charter revision process, this Council shall, by resolution, (1) appoint a commission
consisting of not fewer than five (5) nor more than nine (9) electors, not more than one-third (1/3"%)
of whom may hold public office in the Town and not more than a bare majority of whom shall be

members of any one political party, which Commission shall designate a Chair, Vice-Chair and -

Secretary and proceed forthwith to draft any such charter amendments; and (2) establish the
timeframe for submission of a final report by said Commission; and, be it further,

RESOLVED, that this Council shall retain the services of experienced legal counsel who
shall (1) consult with the Office of the Corporation Counsel and (2) provide such assistance to

the Commission as deemed necessary.




mems /2. ONAGENDA

INTRODUCED BY COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL
James Sanchez, Councilman City of Hartford, June 8, 2020
John Q. Gale, Councilman

WHEREAS, On March 20%, 2020 Governor Lamont signed an Executive Order asking
Connecticut Businesses and Residents to “Stay Safe, Stay Home”, effective Monday, March
23th, 2020; and

WHEREAS, On May 9, 2020 Governor Lamont announced that his administration has released
documents detailing phase 1 of Connecticut’s reopening plans to take effect beginning May 20,
and

WHEREAS, to limit the community spread of Covid-19 and keep employees and the public
safe; and

WHEREAS, Covid-19 is a respiratory illness that can be spread from person to person,
according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention; and

WHEREAS, to protect the community from the spread of the virus, people should, avoid close
contact, avoid touching their face and wash hands for 20 seconds with soap or use alcohol-based
hand sanitizer; and

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2020 Hartford County has 9,050 (1) laboratory confirmed cases, and
the City of Hartford has 1,977 (1) confirmed cases which has increased since April; and

WHEREAS, according to Morris Miller CEO of Xenex Disinfection Services hundreds of
germicidal ultraviolet lights (UV-C) have been shipped to Italy, Japan, Thailand, Ecuador and
Spain, using UV-C to kill microbes, airborne viruses, microorganisms and to help disinfect their
facilities; and [https://www.cnbe.com/video/2020/04/14/xenex-ceo-morris-miller-on-uv-light-
disinfection-in-hospitals.hitmt]

WHEREAS, a study was done on UV-C lights at Duke University Hospital (DUH) , Duke
Regional Hospital (DRIT) and Duke Raleigh Hospital (DRAL) in North Carolina in 2017, and
[https://www.dukehealth.org/blog/uv-light-helps-duke-hospitals-fight-transmission-of-

superbugs]

WHEREAS, the Duke Health researchers found that UV-C lights being used at their facilities
helped disinfect hard-to-reach areas by the emission of light bouncing and reflecting off objects;
and

WHEREAS, the light waves kills the pathogens by disrupting their DNA (2); and

WHEREAS, in 2018 Columbia University Irving Medical Center (CUIMC) did research on far
ultraviolet C (far-UVC) lights to consider if far UV-C lights do kill airborne flu viruses; and
[https://www.cuimc.columbia.edu/news/can-uv-light-fight-spread-influenzal




WHEREAS, CUIMC found that far UV-C reduces the spread of person to person transmission
of viruses through the air, by killing the viruses while they are in the air; and :

WHEREAS, Metropolitan Transportation Authority in New York City unveiled a pilot program
to cleaning buses and subways using UV-Lights to disinfect: and
[https://abenews.go.com/US/ultraviolet-light-zap-coronavirus-york-city-subways-
buses/story?id=70770382|

WHEREAS, in Louisiana Justin Hartenstein, Director of Development at the Metairie-based
Oracle Lighting created new kind of mask that uses UV light technology to sanitize and disinfect
the air around your face, and [https://www.wwitv.com/article/news/local/jefferson/mask-developed-
in-metairie-uses-uv-light-to-to-stop-coronavirus/289-d31e865e-9h9-4523-bd0b-de729f84d82e]

WHEREAS, UV lights have been used for years to sterilize medical equipment and purify
water, and

WHEREAS, Magnolia Bakery’s in New York will also replace its recessed lighting with special
ones that also emit far-UVC; now, therefore be it [https://nypost.com/2020/05/18/magnolia-
bakery-to-fight-coronavirus-with-futuristic-cleanse-portal/]

RESOIVED, that the City of Hartford’s Court of Common Council urges the Department of
Health and Fluman Services, the Department of Public Works and other departments, to
participate in using “existing completed research” of FAR UVC Lighting for an “added extra
level” of disinfecting; and be it further

RESOLVED, if implemented, the departments shall safely use FAR UVC lights at all City of
Hartford facilities contact surfaces i.e. counters of City Clerk’s office, Vital Statistics office, Tax
Office, including but not limited to air handling heating and cooling unit systems, etc., and be it
further

RESOLVED, that this FAR UVC technology is not intended to end nor replaces the standard
disinfecting practices recognized today; and be it further

RESOLVED, that this FAR UVC light shall not be used in direct contact to a person and/ or
animal; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the Department of Health and Human Services with the Grants Department
locate and appropriate funding for such technology, and be it further

RESOLVED, by implementing this technology all people entering City facilities shall enter with
the knowledge, that the City of Hartford added an extra layer of environmental protection from
pathogens and viruses.

(1) hitps://portal.ct.gov/Coronavirus

(2)https://www.nature.com/articles/s41598-018-21058-w




